ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 7, 2007
1: 02 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Vic Kohring
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Representative Scott Kawasaki
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S)

Comm ssi oner, Departnent of Environnental Conservation

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER LARRY HARTI G - Anchor age
- CONFI RVATI ON(S) ADVANCED
PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA GASLI NE PORT AUTHORI TY
- PRESENTATI ON CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REQ STER
ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G Acting Conmi ssi oner
Departnent of Environnental Conservation
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as the appointed comm ssioner of

t he Departnent of Environnmental Conservation.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2007



COCHAIR CRAIG JOHNSON called the House Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:02:28 PM Represent ati ves
Johnson, Gatto, and WIson were present at the call to order.
Representatives Seaton, Edgnon, and Cuttenberg arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG COW SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONVENTAL
CONSERVATI ON - ACTI NG COVMM SSI ONER HARTI G

1: 02: 40 PM

CO CHAI R JOHNSON announced that the only order of business would
be the <confirmation hearing of the conm ssioner of the
Departnment of  Environnental Conservation (DEC). Co- Chai r
Johnson began the hearing by asking Acting Conmm ssioner Hartig
why he's interested in being the conm ssioner of DEC

1: 03: 08 PM
ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G, Acting Conm ssioner, Departnent of

Envi ronnment al Conservation, related that he hadn't expected this
appoi ntment, but when the opportunity arose there was no probl em

deciding to accept the appointnent. He explained that for many
years he has worked on environnental issues around the state,
whi ch he has enjoyed. He nmentioned that he has also enjoyed

working with the scientists, engineers, and other staff at DEC
He <characterized DEC as an interesting departnent wth an
interesting and rewarding tine ahead with the gas pipeline and
ot her issues on the forefront. Furthernore, Acting Comm ssioner
Hartig opined that Governor Palin is bringing new ideas to
government, such as open governnment and governnent closer to the
peopl e.

1: 04: 16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON, referring to Acting Conm ssioner Hartig's
wor k experience in environmental and natural resource nmatters,
inquired as to whether he specialized in any area.

ACTING COMWM SSIONER HARTIG related that as an attorney in
private practice in Anchorage for 23 years, he worked on a
variety of environnental issues. He specified that initially in
his private practice he focused on contam nated site issues and
his clients included the Public Enployees' Retirenment System
(PERS) and Teachers' Retirenent System (TRS). He recalled that
he worked on situations that arose after the change in |aw

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2007



requiring businesses to upgrade or close out underground storage

t anks. He further recalled performng a lot of investigative
work regarding whether property was contamnated and how to
all ocate responsibility when it was contam nat ed. However, for

the last 10 years, he said that he has been nore focused on
natural resource developnent in which he assisted those seeking
permts for mnes, oil and gas operations, and resource
devel opment and assisted themw th environnmental conpliance.

1: 06: 18 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO rem nded everyone of the cruise ship tax that
includes a $4 tax for the ocean ranger program which 1is
operated under DEC. He inquired as to how that $4 woul d be used
by DEC. He further inquired as to how the ocean ranger program
will be set up to nonitor environnmental conditions on the cruise
shi ps.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G said that the departnent has had sone
difficulty and has approached the sponsors regarding the clear
goals of the programin order to conply with the |aw However,
he said the department isn't sure that the sponsors of the
initiative fully understood the |ogistical and practical
concerns that would arise when trying to achieve the
initiative's goal and whether the initiative is the best way to
actually achieve the goal. He acknow edged that the |egislature
is also reviewwng and debating whether there should be
amendnents to the initiative. Therefore, he said he has asked
the departnment to review the initiative, what it requires, and
what DEC can best do to inplenment the aforenmentioned when the
first large cruise ships arrive. The departnent is also
planning to track what the legislature is doing in terns of
anending the initiative and anticipate what nay need to be in
pl ace in response. If logistics are an obstacle, he said the
departnment will do the best it can and provide an expl anation as
to why it doesn't have a program that provides everything
specified on the first day. Wth the aforenmentioned in mnd

it's difficult to specify how the funds will be used. Acti ng
Comm ssioner Hartig stated that it's DECs intent to inplenent
the law as fully as possible, once the departnent is sure of
what the lawis.

1:10: 01 PM
COCHAIR GATTO pointed out that an average ship with 2,000

passengers would generate $8,000/week to inplenent the ocean
ranger program He related his wunderstanding that an ocean

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2007



ranger needs to be certified by DEC rather than the U S. Coast
Guard.

MR HARTIG related his wunderstanding that the initiative
requires a U S. Coast Cuard-certified marine engineer, although
that's not the person who would need to perform the work
contenplated by the initiative. One of the problens is that
[US Coast Cuard-certified marine engineers] aren't readily
available in Alaska and aren't necessary to do the specified

j ob. A US. Coast Guard-certified marine engineer is nore
experienced and trained on the propulsion system for the boat
versus air em ssions. Therefore, using a US. Coast Cuard-

certified marine engineer would require a fair anount of
training for soneone who nmay not be the best person for the job.
Furthernore, there are logistical concerns with regard to an
ocean ranger's interaction with other people on the boat so that
there is no disruption for the crew or passengers. Mor eover,
there are safety concerns.

1:11: 56 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO suggested that Acting Conm ssioner Hartig put out
a request for proposals (RFP) for an entity that can provide
trai ning and supply the personnel for the specified training.

ACTI NG COMWM SSI ONER HARTI G answered that such has been done to a
degree when the departnment had a consultant, who was a forner
DEC enployee and U. S. Coast Guard nenber, review what the
initiative appeared to require and how the |ogistical concerns
woul d be addressed. The aforenentioned know edge is necessary
before the departnent can put out a contract. However, the
departnment recognizes that the initiative is in flux and could
be anended. If there is no anendnent to the initiative, he
opined that it wll be an accelerated situation in which people
who could be trained wuld be placed on the cruise ships
i mredi ately and others would follow.

1:13: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG requested that Acting Conm ssioner
Hartig describe what he believes to be the function and
responsibilities of the ocean rangers.

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER HARTI G enphasi zed that the department wll
start with what the law is, adding that this position isn't the
creation of DEC He then related his basic understandi ng that
the initiative sponsors want there to be a watch dog on the

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2007



cruise ships to track what is being done on the cruise ships.
The initiative sponsors are concerned, he opined, that there is
no one really tracking what the cruise ships do while in Al aska
wat ers; the sponsors want to know that there is conpliance with
state environnental |aws and provide a manner in which to track
t hat . The departnent is attenpting to determne the full ganut
of conpliance issues and how one person can track all of those.

1:16: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the departnent has considered
using "able-bodied seanen" rather than a "marine engineer”
since [the departnment will provide] training.

ACTING COWMWM SSIONER HARTIG said that the departnent doesn't
believe a marine engineer is necessary, and noted his agreenent
that there are other qualified people who would be easier to
find and perhaps even |less expensive and able to do a better
j ob. He noted that whether an able-bodied seanan or a narine
engi neer is used, a fair anount of training would be required.

1:17:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if any thought has been given to
using an individual other than an individual I|icensed by the
U S. Coast Cuard.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G answered, "Not that |'m aware of."
He reiterated that the departnment would track the requirenments
of the initiative or any anmendnent passed by the | egislature.

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON highlighted that the initiative calls for a
I icensed Coast Guard marine engineer. However, he renmarked that
he wasn't sure such an individual existed.

1:17:48 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO related his wunderstanding that the U S. Coast
GQuard's main contribution is to ensure that whoever fills the
position is licensed. |If the individual is licensed, "the Coast
Guard is now out of it and that person now has an obligation to
you and the rest of us here,"” he said. Co-Chair Gatto said he
envisioned that person wuld read dials and record any
di screpancies, which would be brought to the attention of the
envi ronnment al engi neer on board to certify, verify, or explain.
He asked if such nonitoring requires a marine engi neer.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2007



ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G responded, "I don't believe so." He
noted that the [departnent] perforns inspections throughout the
state of a wde variety of facilities and the departnent doesn't
have (indisc.) in those instances.

1:19: 28 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO returned to the cost of $8,000 a day. He opi ned
that it isn't necessary to [nonitor] this daily because nuch of
the information is automatically recorded. Therefore, Co-Chair
Gatto related his belief that this [nonitoring] could be
perfornmed for $1,000 a day. He then asked what the $8,000 will
be utilized for and could the program cost nore than that a day.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G said that he doesn't have the exact
figures on the budget, but offered to provide those. He noted
that the [estimates/programl is scaled back from the initial
point at which the [nonitoring] had to be performed 24 hours a
day every day. The departnment doesn't believe that such
monitoring is necessary to verify environnmental conpliance.

1: 21: 21 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO pointed out that the cruise ships will be comng
in a little over two nonths and are com ng [whether the ocean
ranger programis ready or not].

ACTI NG COMW SSI ONER HARTI G said that has been a concern for him
which has resulted in the departnent reviewing alternatives. He
reiterated that his instructions to departnent staff are to
follow the law as closely as possible. The reality, he opined,
is that there won't be an ocean ranger on each boat on the first
day.

1: 23: 01 PM

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked if there's a definition of a nmarine
engi neer.

COCHAIR JOHNSON comented that the initiative requires
sonmething that's relatively undeliverable.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON interjected that there are different
| evel s of certification of marine engineers. He opined that the
person being licensed is necessary, "but | don't think that we
need the ... Coast CGuard licensing of an engineer. But we don't
want to put soneone on a vessel in the areas that they're going

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2007



to be when the ship is underway that doesn't at |east have
an abl e-bodi ed seaman card ...."

1:25: 23 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO pointed out that the crew on these cruise ships
are typically foreign nationals and will need to work with an
English speaker. He asked if that's a significant issue.

ACTING COW SSIONER HARTIG said that's a level of detail to
which he can't speak. He reiterated that the departnment went
out for a contract to try to work out what the | ogistical
concerns woul d be.

1:26:13 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO recalled that after an accidental dunping of
[waste] three years ago he boarded a cruise ship and was taken
through all the procedures. After going through the procedures
required [to dunp waste], Co-Chair Gatto opined that the

[ dunpi ng] was no accident. He further opined that the ocean
ranger program is inportant, especially since these are
people/entities who have had convictions. Co-Chair Gatto

specified that this [program is sinply a safeguard for
preventing the contamnation of halibut beds and throw ng
pl astic bags off the back of the boat. The only way to know
that things are being done properly is to put soneone on board
to verify it. Co-Chair Gatto said that he would be very wary of
obj ections stating that people didn't know what they were voting
for because the voters asked for the ocean rangers.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G noted his appreciation of the input,
and reiterated that the departnment wants to follow the |aw and
the initiative

1: 30: 16 PM

CO- CHAIR GATTO related his wunderstanding that the departnent
will spend noney before collecting it. Therefore, he inquired
as to how nuch funding the departnment has requested.

ACTI NG COWM SSI ONER HARTI G specified that supplenmental funding
in the anpunt of $811,000 has been requested. The suppl enmenta
funding is necessary due to the delay between the tine the
departnment will have to inplenent the program and actually be
able to collect the funds to pay for it.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2007



CO CHAIR GATTO estimated that 1 mllion passengers paying $4
each will result in the collection of $4 mllion over the course
of the season.

1: 31: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG rem nded the menbers of the transition
from the Lease Moni t ori ng and Engi neeri ng Integrity
Coordinator's Ofice (LMEICO to the Petroleum Systens Integrity
Ofice (PSIO. He inquired as to how Acting Conm ssioner Hartig
views the departnent's role with the oil industry and its aging
i nfrastructure.

ACTING COWM SSIONER HARTIG infornmed the commttee that even
before he was officially on board, he told those at DEC that he
didn't want another pipeline corrosion issue on his watch. The
departnment is developing a gap analysis in which the in-house
resources of the agency will be used in order to identify any
gaps with regard to regulation with DEC and between DEC and
ot her agenci es. He rem nded the commttee that the Al aska Q|
and Gas Conservation Comm ssion (AOGCC) regulates up to the
wel | head, then DEC [regulates] the flow lines traveling to the
Trans- Al aska Pipeline System (TAPS), and from there the U S
Department of Transportation is in charge. Acting Comm ssi oner
Hartig noted that there was a gap in that the flow lines were
not actually covered, which resulted in DEC creating a package
of regulations that wll cover the flow lines and becone
effective this fall. He said that he wanted to review the
situation internally and perhaps even bring in a third party
contractor to ensure that there are no gaps and overlap for
risky areas. The departnent is going through the aforenentioned
now. Furthernore, sonme of the other comm ssioners are thinking
along the sane lines and are [review ng] whether there are risks
that are present that aren't being addressed that should be of

concern. The effort with the liaison position doesn't dilute
the effort, but rather will take everyone's collective efforts,
put them together, review them collectively as well as

individually and develop a budget that directly addresses what
the [departnment] will be doing. At this point the departnent is
building on what it saw and determning what is the nost
| ogical, efficient, and workable systemthat can be inplenented.

1:37:24 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG hi ghlighted that the |egislature has a

vested interest to ensure that the gaps are addressed. He
recalled a conversation with Departnent of Natural Resources

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2007



(DNR) in which departnment staff said that their |eases had the
ability to go anywhere that was covered under a | ease. In
response to whether that provided DEC with the same authority,
DNR didn't know. Representative Cuttenberg questioned who has
authority on the sunp after AOGCC | eaves.

ACTING COW SSIONER HARTIG confirmed that the departnent is
reviewi ng that issue. Wth regard to whether DNR s authority
under the lease and DEC s authority are co-extensive, he said
that DEC s authority is broader. He explained that DNR has the
| ease arrangenment and can include terns in the |ease that the
| essee has to neet. Therefore, DNR has that additional |everage
that goes outside its environnmental regulations or those of DEC
such that DNR can address any of the concerns brought forth with
the gap/risk analysis in the terns of the |ease. Furt her nore,
DNR can incorporate DEC s requirenents into the | ease. He noted
that besides the gap analysis each departnment would do, the
| essee should have to put forth a plan that says what they plan
to do to deal with this aging infrastructure. Therefore, the
departnents can review that together and concerns could be
addressed under the terns of the |ease. The aforenentioned only
addresses | eases on state |and. For | eases not on state | and,
one has to review DEC s authority. Therefore, he opined that
DEC s task is a bit different and perhaps a bit broader than
that of DNR

1: 41: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG turned to clean air standards. He
related his understanding that the industry is wlling to sell
sonme of its hybrid cars in states that adopt standards all ow ng
t hat . He pointed out that DEC has the ability to adopt
standards allowi ng the sale of such cars in Al aska. He asked if
Acting Comm ssioner Hartig has had any di scussion on that.

ACTI NG COVMM SSI ONER HARTI G replied no, but offered to follow up.
He said he didn't know why the departnent would stand in the way
of anything that's environnentally beneficial. He nentioned
that one of his [goals] is to do what's available to reduce
pol | uti on.

1:42: 18 PM
CO CHAIR GATTO i nquired as to what the standards woul d say.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said the standards would wutilize
perm ssi ve | anguage.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -9- March 7, 2007



1: 42: 55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the department is proceeding with
the National Pollutant D scharge Elim nation System ( NPDES).

ACTING COW SSIONER HARTIG related that pursuing primcy from
the Environnental Protection Agency (EPA) is a priority of the
depart nent. Currently, EPA issues the NPDES under the C ean
Water Act in Alaska. Alaska is one of five states that does not
have primacy. The 45 states that have primacy have received the
authority fromthe EPA to issue the permts, albeit under EPA s
regul ati ons and oversight. Acting Conm ssioner Hartig expl ai ned
that Alaska is pursuing primcy because utilizing |ocal people
could be nore responsive to local concerns and perhaps provide
gui cker turnaround. He pointed out that permts com ng out of
Region 10 in Seattle conpete against O egon, Wshington, and
| daho for prioritization. Furthernore, there were some problens
obtaining nodifications to permts since that wasn't a high
priority with EPA. Therefore, there are a variety of pros and
cons to state primacy. However, the state is pursuing primacy
and put forth its draft application July 1, 2006, after which
EPA identified about 199 concerns. There are about two concerns
left. He recalled that EPA brought forward sonme changes
requiring |egislative changes, which is enconpassed in HB 149.
The aforenmentioned |egislation uses nore technical changes to
pl ace Al aska law in conpliance with EPA requirenents for a state
to take prinacy. He noted that no new permtting requirenents
are added, it nerely gives the state sone of the sane authority
the EPA has in Alaska regarding the issuance of NPDES permts.

The departnment wll provide another draft application to EPA
July 1st and the EPA w Il provide any additional conments by
Sept enber 1st. A final application wll be provided to EPA
which will attenpt to have a final decision on the state's
application by March 31, 2008. If the decision is favorabl e,
the state would then have the NPDES program which would be
phased in over three years. Over that three-year period the
state would work with EPA to put together permts and train
department personnel. At the end of the three-year period the

state should be fully running the program
1:47:16 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recalled that permts are backlogged with

EPA because they have Washi ngton and Oregon permts as well. He
related his understanding that Washington and Oregon have

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2007



primacy, and surmsed that there would still be a backlog if
Al aska takes primacy.

ACTING COM SSIONER HARTIG clarified that [those EPA staff]
working on permts get pulled in different directions and
permts just aren't a priority for the region. He opined that
it's difficult for a small facility in Alaska to anend a permt
because those require the sanme process as the original permt.
The aforementioned is problematic, especially when the permt
nodi fication doesn't have direct environnmental inpacts and ot her
priorities for staff and funding exist and result in a shifting
of the priorities.

1:49: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON related his understanding from DEC that
there would be 20 fewer people working on NPDES permts than

currently. Therefore, he expressed concern that this wll slow
t he process. He opined that the [permtting process] wll cost
money, and therefore nore noney will have to be collected from
permttees since the [progran] wll be self-sustaining in

Al aska. Representative Seaton urged Acting Conm ssioner Hartig
to review the situation carefully in order to ensure that the
former admnistration's ideas related to streamining the
process are consistent with the ideas of the new adm ni stration.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER HARTI G noted his agreenent that the state
has to have a programin which everyone has confidence, and thus
corners can't be cut.

1: 50: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGMON related his observation that there's no
guestion that Acting Conm ssioner Hartig is qualified and has
the integrity and background for the position of conm ssioner.
However, he highlighted Acting Comm ssioner Hartig' s nenbership
in professional and comunity organizations and asked if the
position of comm ssioner is a very different position.

ACTI NG COMM SSI ONER HARTI G replied yes and no. He noted that he
filled the recreation seat on the Board of Forestry, which he
characterized as a position fairly anal ogous to what he's doing
now. That board is sonewhat unique in that it consists of
representatives from key stakeholders, including environnental,
fishing, biological, Native, recreation, and tinber interests.
Furt hernore, decisions had to be unaninmous |ess one and thus it
resulted in people working together in a cooperative manner. He

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2007



expressed hope that he could bring that to this job. He opi ned
that if he had a bias he wouldn't take the position.

1:53: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG inquired as to Acting Conm ssioner
Hartig's interest in holding the recreational seat on the Board
of Forestry.

ACTING COW SSIONER HARTIG related that he has always had a
strong interest in state parks and was a nenber of various
recreational groups. He noted that he sat on the Chugach State
Park Regi onal Advisory Board and was head of the Alaska State
Par k Foundati on.

1: 54: 29 PM

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said she was glad to hear Acting
Comm ssioner Hartig |iked how the Board of Forestry was set up
and recalled her tinme working in such a process that caused
everyone to work together.

1:55: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved that the commttee forward the nane
of Larry Hartig to the position of commssioner of the
Department of Environnental Conservation to the full body for
consideration. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

1:56: 24 PM
ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Resources Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 1:56:26
PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 7, 2007



